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Hi all
 
AM which went over yesterday.
 
Cheers
 
Jean
 

From: Meghan Stephens [TSY] <Meghan.Stephens@treasury.govt.nz> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 5:21 PM
To: ^Parliament: Emma Grigg <emma.grigg@parliament.govt.nz>
Cc: Patrick Nolan [TSY] <Patrick.Nolan@treasury.govt.nz>; Michael Eglinton [TSY]
<Michael.Eglinton@treasury.govt.nz>; Claire Hubert [TSY] <Claire.Hubert@treasury.govt.nz>;
Jean Le Roux [TSY] <Jean.LeRoux@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: FW: Aide Memoire: Further information on TR2024/598 (Personal Income Tax – initial
distributional analysis of wider package) T2024/646 [BUDGET-SENSITIVE]
 

Kia ora Emma,
Please find attached an AM that provides - Further information on TR2024/598 (Personal Income
Tax – initial distributional analysis of wider package). This is in response to some questions we
received on the modelling, specifically:

1. Why does the modelling approach show losers from the Working for Families (WFF)
changes?

They are referred to as “losers” as they would have less income in tax year 2027
under the reform than under the status quo in tax year 2027.

2. Does the modelling estimate labour supply changes as a result of changes in individual’s
marginal tax rates?

Labour supply changes are not factored into the results, but we can provide
modelling on changes to financial incentives to work.

3. Can individuals with children receive IETC?

Yes, if they are not eligible for Working for Families.

4. How will recipients of NZS be affected by PIT changes?

They will receive tax relief based on their total taxable income.

Please let me know if it would be useful for us to meet to discuss any questions about the
modelling and/or the tools we maintain and develop in the Analytics and Insights team.
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Date:	12 March 2024





To:	Minister of Finance 

(Hon Nicola Willis)





Deadline:	None

(if any)





Aide Memoire: Further information on TR2024/598 (Personal Income Tax – initial distributional analysis of wider Package)

On 8 March 2024 you received TR2024/598 – “Personal Income Tax – initial distributional analysis of wider package”. This note seeks to answer further questions you have asked about the content of this report, specifically: 



1. Why does the modelling approach show losers from the Working for Families (WFF) changes?  

· They are referred to as “losers” as they would have less income in tax year 2027 under the reform than under the status quo in tax year 2027.

2. Does the modelling estimate labour supply changes as a result of changes in individual’s marginal tax rates?  

· Labour supply changes are not factored into the results, but we can provide modelling on changes to financial incentives to work. 

3. Can individuals with children receive IETC?  

· Yes, if they are not eligible for Working for Families.

4. How will recipients of NZS be affected by PIT changes?

· They will receive tax relief based on their total taxable income. 



More details are provided below. 



Overview of Treasury’s modelling



Treasury uses the TAWA (Tax and Welfare Analysis) microsimulation model as part of the budget process to estimate the costs and distributional impacts of potential personal tax and welfare policies. TAWA is also used to estimate future child poverty rates for the Child Poverty Report. 


Why does the modelling approach show losers from the WFF tax changes?



TAWA estimates household incomes in a future tax year under current policy settings and then estimates the impact of a policy reform on those future household incomes. The model shows how much they would gain or lose compared to their future incomes under the status quo. The “gain” and “loss” is therefore not an increase/decrease in income between two years and is instead a comparison of alternative future incomes at the same point in time. 



In TR2024/598, the “losing” households have less income in tax year 2027 under the reform than they would have had under the status quo in tax year 2027. For example, in the status quo for tax year 2027, a hypothetical family with a newborn baby and income over $100,000 would receive a Best Start payment but under the reform they would not. They would fall into the “losers” category regardless of their income in previous years. 



Does the modelling estimate labour supply changes as a result of changes in marginal tax rates?  



TAWA does not estimate changes in labour supply as a direct result of changes in marginal tax rates. The model operates as a static or non-behavioural microsimulation model. This essentially means that it does not factor in the potential behavioural responses of individuals, such as changes in their labour supply. 



Labour supply responses are one source of uncertainty in microsimulation modelling – others include data quality issues, take up, and economic forecast uncertainty. Recent Treasury analysis has demonstrated that the impact on model results from labour supply effects tends to be less significant than other forms of uncertainty, particularly changes in economic forecasts. Treasury has thus prioritised improving how the TAWA model can account for changes in economic forecasts and take-up and improving the input data using the IDI[footnoteRef:1].  [1:  Stats NZ’s Integrated Data Infrastructure. ] 




While behavioural microsimulation models exist and are capable of incorporating labour supply responses to tax changes, these models are often criticised for their lack of transparency. Other, more transparent methods can be used to consider potential effects of a reform on labour supply. 



TAWA can be used to assess the outcomes of reforms on the distribution of effective marginal tax rates (EMTRs). We can provide information on the number of families that would experience a change in their effective marginal tax rates, which provides a picture of changes in their incentives to work. So, while TAWA does not directly model labour supply changes, it can be used as a tool to assess and communicate the consequences of policy reforms on work incentives and household incomes.




Can individuals with children receive IETC?  

 

WFF tax credits include the In-Work Tax Credit (IWTC), Best Start Tax Credit (BSTC) and Family Tax Credit (FTC). Individuals with children whose family is not in receipt of any WFF tax credits are eligible to receive IETC (subject to meeting the income test).  

 

This could, for example, be the case where a family’s combined earnings are high enough such that they are ineligible for any WFF credits, but an individual within that family earns an amount that qualifies for IETC. 

  

Further explanation of the interaction between IETC and WFF, including further worked examples, can be found in the Inland Revenue Briefing Note 2024/091 - “Interaction between the Independent Earner Tax Credit and Working for Families tax credits”. 

 

How will recipients of NZS be affected by PIT changes?



Recipients of New Zealand Superannuation (NZS) will gain from this package due to NZS being set as a gross amount. This means tax is recalculated under the new settings, so recipients will directly receive tax relief based on their taxable income, which includes the total amount they receive of NZS and any other taxable income.  



Personal income tax relief policies will also impact indexation. NZS rates are indexed using a either CPI or the net average after-tax wage (depending on which results in a larger payment). As the average after-tax wage increases due to New Zealanders paying less tax on the same income, NZS payments will increase (depending on CPI).[footnoteRef:2]  [2:  The formula for indexing NZS rates is complex. NZS rates are indexed to the maximum growth in CPI or 66% of the net average after-tax wage (i.e., referred to as the wage floor). In the near term, the CPI indexation results in rates above the wage floor, but this will change over time. ] 










Meghan Stephens, Principal Advisor, Analytics and Insights, 04 917 6232

Patrick Nolan, Manager, Analytics and Insights, 04 890 7438
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Ngā mihi,
 
Meghan
 
 
 

 
Dr Meghan Stephens (she/her) | Principal Advisor, Analytics and Insights | Te Tai Ōhanga –
The Treasury
Tel:   | Email/IM: meghan.stephens@treasury.govt.nz
 
The Treasury is working across government on New Zealand’s COVID-19 economic recovery. 
For the latest economic commentary and resources, visit our website treasury.govt.nz and follow
us on Twitter, LinkedIn and Instagram
 
 
 
 

From: Moto <MotoDoNotReply@cass.govt.nz> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 12, 2024 5:05 PM
To: Ministerial Services Inbox [TSY] <Ministerial.Services@treasury.govt.nz>; Meghan Stephens
[TSY] <Meghan.Stephens@treasury.govt.nz>; Anna Golebicka-Buchanan [TSY] <Anna.Golebicka-
Buchanan@treasury.govt.nz>
Subject: Aide Memoire: Further information on TR2024/598 (Personal Income Tax – initial
distributional analysis of wider package) T2024/646 [BUDGET-SENSITIVE]
 

[FORWARD this email to Ministerial.Services@Treasury.govt.nz]

Dear Ministerial.Services, Meghan Stephens [TSY], Anna Golebicka-Buchanan [TSY]

Patrick Nolan has approved the attached Aide Memoire: Further information on TR2024/598
(Personal Income Tax – initial distributional analysis of wider package).

Anna Golebicka-Buchanan: You should now prepare this Aide Memoire to be uploaded to Teams
or email directly to the relevant Private Secretary.

This email has been automatically generated by Moto.
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